GENERAL AGREEMENT ON RESTRICTED

TARIFFS AND TRADE

C/M/254
10 March 1992

Limited Distribution

COUNCIL
18 February 1992

Subjects discussed:

L9

92-0301

MINUTES OF MEETING

Held in the Centre William Rappard

on 18 February 1992

Chairman: Mr. B.K. Zutshi (India)

Trade in Textiles
(a) Report of the Textiles Committee
(b) Report of the Textiles Surveillance
Body
Committee on Balance-of-Payments
Restrictions
(a) Consultation with Israel
(b) Note on the meeting of 26 November
1991
(c) Programme of consultations for 1992
Romania - Renegotiation of Protocol of
Accession
- Communication from Romania
Philippines - Rates of certain sales and
specific taxes
- Extension of time-limit
ANDEAN Trade Preference Act
- Request by the United States for a
waiver under Article XXV:5
Appointment of presiding officers of
standing bodies
- Announcement by the Chairman
Canada - Import, distribution and sale of
certain alcoholic drinks by provincial
marketing agencies
- Panel report
United States - Denial of MFN treatment
as to non-rubber footwear from Brazil
- Panel report
United States - Restrictions on imports
of tuna
- Panel report
- Communication from Venezuela

Page

16

17

19

21



C/M/254
Page 2

Page
10. EEC - Trade measures taken for 35
non-economic reasons
- Recourse to Article XXIII:2 by
Yugoslavia
11. Trade and environment 37
- GATT’s contribution to the UNCED
12. Roster of non-governmental panelists 37
- Proposed nomination by Israel
13. Agreements among Argentina, Brazil, 37
Paraguay and Uruguay
14. US/Japan automotive arrangements 39
15. Finland - Estonia Free-Trade Arrangement 40
16. EEC - Association Agreements with 40
Hungary, Poland and the Czech and
Slovak Federal Republic
17. EFTA - Turkey Free-Trade Agreement 41

Prior to adoption of the Agenda, representatives rose and observed a
minute of silence in memory of Mr. Radomiro Tomic, former Ambassador of
Chile to the GATT, deceased on 3 January 1992.

Also prior to adoption of the Agenda, the Chairman informed the
Council that on 24 December 1991, the President of the Russian Federation
had informed the Secretary General of the United Nations that the
membership of the former USSR in the United Nations, including the Security
Council, and in other organs and organizations of the United Nations was to
be continued, with the support of the Commonwealth of Independent States,
by the Russian Federation. In a letter dated 26 December 1991, the
Permanent Mission of the Russian Federation in Geneva had informed the GATT
of this change (L/6978). Accordingly, and in line with the practice that
in political matters GATT would follow decisions by the United Nations, the
GATT observer status previously conferred to the former USSR would be
continued through the Russian Federation.

1. Trade in Textiles
(a) Report of the Textiles Committee (COM.TEX/72)

(b) Report of the Textiles Surveillance Body (COM.TEX/SB/1648 and
Add.1l)

The Director-General, Chairman of the Textiles Committee, introduced
the Committee's report on its annual review of the operation of the
Multifibre Arrangement (MFA) as extended by the 1986 Protocol, and as
maintained in force by the 1991 Protocol. This review had been carried out
by the Committee in December 1991, pursuant to Article 10:4 of the MFA
which required it to conduct such a review once a year and to report
thereon to the Council. 1In conducting the review, the Committee had had




C/M/254
Page 3

before it: (a) a statistical report by the Secretariat on textiles and
clothing trade, and on recent developments in demand, production and trade
in textiles and clothing (COM.TEX/W/239); and (b) a report by the Textiles
Surveillance Body (COM.TEX/SB/1648 and Add.1l).

The report of the Textiles Surveillance Body (TSB) covered its
activities from 1 August 1990 to 1 October 1991, and set out details of the
notifications reviewed by it during this period along with its observations
thereon. With respect to the TSB membership for 1992, the Committee had
decided that it would be composed of members designated by Brazil, Canada,
China, the European Economic Community, Hong Kong, India, Japan, Norway,
Philippines and the United States. He noted that there were currently 34
signatories to the 1991 Protocol Maintaining in Force the MFA and the 1986
Protocol.

At its meeting, the Committee had also carried out the requirement of
Article 10:5 of the MFA that it "meet not later than one year before the
expiry of this Arrangement to consider whether the Arrangement should be
extended, modified or discontinued”". Since the current Protocol would
expire at the end of 1992, this procedure had satisfied the mandatory
requirement of Article 10:5 and it had been agreed that, for obvious
reasons, there could be no discussion on the future of the Arrangement at
that meeting.

The Council took note of the statement and of the report of the
Textiles Surveillance Body (COM.TEX/SB/1648 and Add.l) and adopted the
report of the Textiles Committee (COM.TEX/72).

2. Committee on Balance-of-Payments Restrictions
(a) Consultation with Israel (BOP/R/195)
(b) Note on the meeting of 26 November 1991 (BOP/R/196)
(c) Programme of consultations for 1992 (C/W/693)

(a) Consultation with Israel (BOP/R/195)

Mr. Boittin, Chairman of the Committee, said that at the consultation
with Israel on 26 November 1991, the Committee had noted the improvements
in Israel’s current account in 1989 and 1990. It had also noted that
Israel’s balance-of-payments position had deteriorated in 1991 and was
likely to come under increasing pressure as a result, inter alia, of the
economic consequences of sharply increased immigration. The Committee had
welcomed that, as part of a comprehensive trade liberalization programme,
Israel had abolished most of the non-tariff measures introduced for
balance-of-payments reasons and had replaced them by temporary higher
customs tariffs with a timetable for their reduction. The Committee had
also noted that import licensing was still maintained on agricultural
products and that the tariffication of import restrictions had resulted in
high temporary tariffs applied to m.f.n. sources. While welcoming the
tariffication process in general, members of the Committee had expressed
concern about the high levels of some temporary tariffs. Some had referred
to the possibility of discriminatory effects resulting from the
non-application of such tariffs to free-trade area sources and had




C/M/254
Page 4

asked Israel to take steps to minimize any harmful effects. They had also
called attention to the fact that Israel, in introducing additional
temporary charges on four items, had exempted some m.f.n. partners from
their application and had urged Israel, in line with its undertaking to the
Committee, to bring these charges into GATT conformity. The Committee had
encouraged Israel to continue the process of import liberalization
including the acceleration of its tariff reduction programme, and to
announce a time schedule for phasing out the remaining restrictions
maintained for balance-of-payments purposes, including the import levy.

The Council took note of the statement and adopted the report in
BOP/R/195.

(b) Note on the meeting of 26 November 1991 (BOP/R/196)

Mr. Boittin, Chairman of the Committee, said that at its meeting on
26 November 1991, the Committee had noted, under "Other Business", that the
consultations with India, Colombia, Pakistan and Sri Lanka scheduled for
November 1991 had been postponed to March 1992.

The Council took note of the statement and of the Note in BOP/R/196.

(c) Programme of consultations for 1992 (C/W/693)

Mr. Boittin, Chairman of the Committee, drew attention to the
Committee’s programme of consultations for 1992 in document C/W/693. It
was his understanding that the simplified consultation with Colombia
scheduled for March might not now be necessary.

The representative of Colombia said that his Government was not
applying any restrictive measures for balance-of-payments reasons and that,
accordingly, it wished to announce the disinvocation of the relevant
provisions of Article XVIII:B. This disinvocation was the result of the
process of opening Colombia’s economy to foreign trade and investment,
which had enabled it to become more competitive. His Government's decision
also constituted an important step towards strengthening the multilateral
trading system represented by the GATT because, on the one hand, Colombia’s
economic liberalization fitted in with the precepts of the General
Agreement and, on the other, its disinvocation of Article XVIII:B
underlined the fact that those provisions were meant to deal with
situations of a temporary nature. Naturally, Colombia was not operating in
a vacuum. It was convinced that its trading partners, and in particular
the major trading partners, were moving in the same direction and thereby
contributing to the strengthening of a multilateral trading system free
from unnecessary trade barriers. The best way to carry out such a process
and to encourage the opening up of the economies of countries like Colombia
and others in Latin America, Asia and Central Europe which had also
embarked on a liberalization programme, would be to bring the Uruguay Round
to a successful conclusion. He underlined that not to contribute to the
Round’s successful conclusion would encourage protectionism with its
well-known negative consequences on trade, employment and economic growth.
As a result of his Government’s decision to disinvoke Article XVIII:B,



§

C/M/254
Page 5

there would no longer be any need for the simplified consultation scheduled
with it for March 1992.

The representative of the Czech and Slovak Federal Republic (CSFR)
said that, as indicated in document C/W/693, the CSFR still maintained an
import surcharge. However, he wished to note that his Government had
proceeded to several successive reductions of the surcharge in the course
of 1991, lowering it from 20 per cent to 10 per cent by the end of that
year. This was an indication of his Government's strong commitment to
further lowering and removing the surcharge.

The Council took note of the statements and of the information in
C/W/693.

3. Romania - Renegotiation of Protocol of Accession
- Communication from Romania (L/6981)

The representative of Romania said that, as announced at the
Forty-Seventh Session of the CONTRACTING PARTIES in December 1991, his
Government had decided to formally request the renegotiation of the terms
of Romania’s Protocol of Accession to the GATT. This request was being
made in the light of the significant steps undertaken in the process of
transition to a market economy which had been notified in documents L/6838
and Add.1, and as a result of which its Protocol of Accession (BISD 185/5),
concluded in 1971 when Romania had had a centrally-planned economy, had
become outdated and its specific provisions obsolete. For example, in the
absence of a customs tariff at that time, Romania’s list of commitments had
consisted in the firm intention "to increase its imports from the
contracting parties as a whole at a rate not smaller than the growth of
total Romanian imports provided for in its Five-Year Plans". The Protocol
also contained provisions relating to the monitoring of discriminatory
measures maintained by other contracting parties, to safeguard measures and
to agreed monetary rules in the absence at that time of Romania’s
membership in the International Monetary Fund (IMF). The situation that
had induced such specific provisions in the Protocol had now completely
changed. For example, the central planning system had been abolished and
the State monopoly on foreign trade and foreign exchange had been
dismantled; an effective customs tariff, based on the Harmonized System
was in place and constituted the main trade policy instrument; economic
operators enjoyed full autonomy; privatization was under way and the
private sector was being expanded; the quasi-totality of prices had been
liberalized; the fiscal, banking and credit systems were undergoing speedy
reforms; a liberal foreign investment régime was already in place; and
the internal convertibility of the national currency had been introduced.
Furthermore, most of the discriminatory measures maintained by other
contracting parties were gradually being eliminated. Also, Romania had
become a member of the IMF as early as 1972. It was therefore imperative
to bring its terms of accession to the GATT in line with the fundamental
changes in its economic system. The specific provisions were no longer
needed and the normal GATT principles and rules would be sufficient to
govern Romania’'s participation in the multilateral trading system.
Accordingly, Romania requested the renegotiation of the provisions of its



C/M/254
Page 6

Protocol of Accession in order to replace it by a standard Protocol with
commitments based on tariff concessions.

The Council took note of the statement and agreed to establish a
working party with the following terms of reference and composition which

had been the subject of informal consultations:

Terms of reference

"To examine the request of the Government of Romania to renegotiate
the terms of accession of Romania to the General Agreement on Tariffs and
Trade as embodied in the Protocol for the Accession of Romania of
15 October 1971, and to submit to the Council recommendations which may
include a draft Protocol of Accession."

Membership

Membership would be open to all contracting parties indicating their
wish to serve on the Working Party.

The Council authorized its Chairman to designate the Chairman of the

Working Party in consultation with contracting parties.

4. Philippines - Rates of certain sales and specific taxes
- Extension of time-limit (C/W/694)

The Chairman recalled that at their Forty-Seventh Session, the
CONTRACTING PARTIES had considered a request by the Philippines for a
one-year extension of the period during which its differential rates of
sales and specific taxes with respect to cigarettes could be brought into
line with Article III, and had agreed to refer the matter to the Council
for further consideration (SR.47/2). He drew attention to a draft decision
in document C/W/694 which had been circulated to facilitate the Council’s
consideration of the matter.

The representative of the Philippines said that since the Session, her
Government had regrettably not been able to address fully its obligation to
bring into line the differential tax rates on cigarettes within the
time-limit decided by the CONTRACTING PARTIES. Since the last extension of
the time-limit in 1989 (BISD 36S/44), several attempts had been made by the
Philippine Administration to address the issue, most recently through a
bill in 1991 containing a legislative proposal to carry out the necessary
modifications on cigarette taxation. In the past year, however, the
Philippine Congress’ agenda had been filled with more urgent issues
resulting from the unexpected series of natural disasters of the past two
years. In spite of this, the Administration had decided to push for
adoption of the bill by Congress and all efforts had been made to include
this bill in the legislative agenda during the Congress’ brief and last
session before national elections. Regrettably, the Congress had decided
to focus its limited time on what it had deemed to be more critical and
urgent legislative measures. The Congress had concluded its last session



C/M/254
Page 7

on 7 February, and a newly-elected legislature would take up the bill in
question after a new government had taken over, hopefully at the end of
June. It was unlikely, however, that this bill would feature as top
priority for this new Congress, given a number of pressing issues still
left unattended. It would be more realistic to assume that this bill would
be considered, at the earliest, sometime during the third quarter of 1992.
Until then, the Philippine Government would simply not have the legislative
machinery to enact the required law. For this practical reason, her
Government wished to reiterate its request for a further extension of the
time-limit until 31 December 1992.

The representative of the United States said that his Government had
to oppose the Philippines’ request for yet another extension of the
exemption in its Protocol of Accession from GATT obligations to permit
continued discriminatory taxation of cigarettes. He recalled that a
five-year exemption had been granted when the Philippines had acceded to
the GATT in 1979, based on expressions of intent that these practices would
be eliminated within that five-year period. 1In 1984, an extension of five
more years had been requested and granted (BISD 31S/7). In 1989, the
Philippines had again requested an extension. The United States had then
expressed serious misgivings but, despite these concerns, had supported a
further two-year extension based on assurances by the Philippines that it
would undertake all efforts to secure passage of the necessary legislation
"within the prescribed period, or sooner". The United States had made it
clear that it viewed that extension as the last one. The record showed
that the United States had demonstrated flexibility and understanding on
this issue. It could not agree to support the request for another
extension of this exemption, and hoped that the Philippines would secure
approval from its Congress for the necessary steps to bring its practices
into conformity with the GATT.

The representative of the European Communities said that this
exemption had not been granted to the Philippines to exempt it eternally
from certain requirements under the General Agreement, but rather to give
it the time necessary to amend its legislation which had been found
inconsistent with these requirements. The Community believed that the
period of time granted thus far had been sufficient to achieve the
legislative amendments necessary to comply with the General Agreement. The
Community could therefore see no justification for further maintaining this
exemption.

The Council took note of the statements and agreed to revert to this
matter at a future meeting.

5. ANDEAN Trade Preference Act
- Request by the United States for a waiver under Article XXV:5
(C/W/692, L/6980 and Add.1l)

The Chairman drew attention to the request by the United States in
L/6980 and Add.1 for a waiver from the provisions of Article I to implement
the ANDEAN Trade Preference Act (ATPA). He also drew attention to the
draft decision in C/W/692 which had been circulated to facilitate the
Council’s consideration of this item.



C/M/254
Page 8

The representative of the United States said that his Government
requested a waiver from Article I for ten years for the purpose of
implementing the ATPA. All contracting parties were aware of the terrible
menace of the use of harmful drugs which was exacting a heavy toll in terms
of personal loss and cost to the United States’ economy and those of other
countries. The ANDEAN nations of Bolivia, Colombia, Ecuador and Peru were
paying a heavy political price because of the high number of lost lives and
substantial depletion of their national treasuries, and had asked for
assistance in this matter through increased trade. They sought an
opportunity for their people to engage in trade in legitimate products as
an alternative to narcotics trafficking. In response, in October 1990, the
United States’ President had submitted to Congress the ANDEAN Trade
Preference Initiative, a legislative package that would provide trade
benefits comparable to the Caribbean Basin Initiative. This package had
been introduced as the ATPA in both the House and the Senate in January
1991. In November of that year, this legislation had passed Congress at
the very end of the session and the Bill had been signed into law on
4 December.

The ATPA would provide extremely modest benefits in terms of the
overall impact on the United States’ trade. Products covered by the ATPA
which did not already receive duty-free treatment represented less than
0.1 per cent of the United States’ imports. Over half the value of current
imports of products eligible for benefits under the ATPA came from one
sector -- cut flowers. Some sectors, including textiles and apparel,
footwear, leather products, petroleum, canned tuna and rum, had been
excluded from duty-free coverage under this programme. The United States
believed that given the modest impact on its imports, trade would not be
diverted from other suppliers. For the ANDEAN countries, however, the ATPA
demonstrated that the United States recognized their sacrifices in the
cooperative fight against narcotics production and trafficking. The United
States urged the Council to approve its waiver request. It believed that
this action could be taken without the need to go through the lengthy
process of a working party because (a) the value of trade covered was very
low; (b) the United States had provided contracting parties with trade
data on the ATPA which it believed answered all questions that they might
have; (c) in practical terms, the ATPA operated as an extension of the
United States’ GSP programme and focused on only four drug-producing
countries; and (d) the United States agreed in the waiver decision to
notify the GATT of any trade-related measures taken under this law, to
consult with any interested contracting party and to submit annually a
report on the implementation of the ATPA. He added that the United States’
President would be meeting with the Presidents of the ANDEAN nations and
the President of Mexico on 26-27 February for the second Drug Summit, and
that his delegation would like to be able to report to these Presidents
that the Council had recommended approval by the CONTRACTING PARTIES of the
United States’ waiver request.

The representative of Venezuela said that his Government shared the
objectives of the ATPA of helping the four ANDEAN countries eradicate the
production, processing and trafficking of narcotics. In this sense,
Venezuela fully supported the United States’ request as a means of
contributing to the solution of these problems in countries with which






